February 1, 2005

VIA FACSIMILE

Virginia C. Beridon, Director
Division of Special Populations
Louisiana Department of Education
1201 Third Street

P.O. Box 94064

Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9064

Fax No. 225-342-5880

Michelle Staggs

Louisiana Department of Education
P.O. Box 94064

Baton Rouge, LA. 70804-9064
ATTN: Legal Division

Fax No. 255-342-1197

Re: Request for an Administrative Due Process Hearing Involving James T.,
Glenn D., Keneisha S. and a Class of All Similarly Situated and Treated
Students with Emotional Disturbance in the Jefferson Parish Public School
System.

I. Glenn D.

II. Keneisha S

III. James T.
Dear Ms. Beridon,

On behalfof GlennD., KeneishaS. andJamesT.(hereinafterPetitioners)anda
classof similarly situatedand treatedstudentswith emotionaldisturbancein Jefferson



ParishSchoolSystem(hereinaftetJPSS)the undersigneadounselarefiling this ClassDue
ProcesLomplaintversusthe LouisianaDepartmenbf Educationandthe LouisianaBoard
of Elementaryand Secondaryducation PetitionerGlennD. is a studentwho attends------

--. At all timesrelevantto this complainthe hasbeendeterminedeligible for special
educationservicesunder the Individuals with Disabilities EducationAct (hereinafter
IDEA), 20 U.S.C.a 1401 et seq. PetitionerKeneishaS. is a studentwho attends---------- .
At all times relevantto this complaint she has beendeterminedeligible for special
educatiorservicesunderIDEA. PetitionerJamesT. is a studentwho attends--------- At all

times relevantto this complainthe hasbeendeterminedeligible for specialeducation
services under IDEA.

Petitionerscontendthatthe LouisianaDepartmenbf Education(hereinaftelLDE)
hasfailed to comply with its generalsupervisoryresponsibilitiesunderIDEA by failing
to identify andto ensureleffersonParishSchoolSystem(hereinafterJPSS)eliminates
numeroussystemicand pervasiveviolationsof IDEA involving studentsvith emotional
disturbanceAs detailedbelow, Petitionerscontendthat JPSShasengagedn anongoing
and systemicpattern of violating theirs as well as similarly situated Emotionally

Disturbed (hereinafter ED) students substantive rights under IDEA resulting in a denial of

a FreeAppropriatePublic Education(hereinaftef=APE),andthe denialof placementn

the LeastRestrictiveEnvironmentandthat LDE hasviolated Petitionersandall other
similarly situatedED studentsrights under IDEA by failing to ensurethat JPSS
eliminatestheseviolations and complieswith IDEA. LDEOdailure to comply with its

generalsupervisoryresponsibilitiesunderIDEA hasdeniedpetitionersandall similarly

situatedEmotionally Disturbedstudentan JPSSFAPE andalsotheir right to placement
in the Least Restrictive Environment.

Petitionersspecifically contendthat LDE has failed to fulfill its general
supervisoryresponsibilitiesunder IDEA by failing to appropriatelymonitor, identify
and\or compel JPSSto eliminate numeroussystemicviolations of IDEA involving
Emotionally Disturbedstudents More than thirty yearsafter the enactmenbf IDEA,
LDE bearsjoint and ultimate responsibilityfor JPSS@ervasivenoncompliancewith
IDEA. See42 U.S.C.a 1412(a)(11); 34 C.F.R.2300.600.JPSSOsystemicviolations of
IDEA include, but are not limited to the following:

1. JPSShasdeniedPetitionersand all other similarly situatedand classified
Emotionally Disturbed studentsFAPE by its failure to provide specially
designednstructionandrelatedserviceshat addresghe inherentbehavioral
characteristicand issuesassociatedvith the classificationof Emotionally

Disturbed and which adversely affect such studentsO educational performance.

JPSShas consistentlyfailed to provide Petitionersand all other similarly
situatedED studentswith appropriatebehaviormanagemenplanswhich
include both specializedinstruction and sufficient and necessaryelated
servicessuchas social work, counseling,and school psychologyservices
tailored to addressidentified behavioralissuesthat adverselyaffect their
education.Indeed JPSShas furnished Petitionersand all other similarly
situatedEmotionally Disturbedstudentswith woefully inadequatdevels of



socialwork\counseling\psychologservicesE.levelsthatareunrelatedo their
individual needsbut insteadare cookie-cutterin natureand baseduponthe
limited availability of such personnel at any given school.

JPSShas also denied Petitionersand other similarly situatedED students

FAPE by its consistenfailure to provide speciallydesignednstructionand
relatedserviceghatarerelatedto andaddresgresentevelsof performance.
JPPShasregularlydraftedlEPsthatareunrelatedo andoftenignore present

levelsof performancdor Petitionersandothersimilarly situatedeD students.

This hasoftenresultedin Petitionersandothersimilarly situatedED students
beingtaughtat inappropriatdrustrationlevels,which in turn hasengendered
behavioral manifestations that lead to disciplinary action.

See 42 U.S.C.a 1401 (8), 1412 (a) (1), @ 1414(d); 34 C.F.R.=©300.13,
8300.121, ©300.340-350; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A & 101, 2440-446.

2. JPSSasfurtherdeniedPetitionersandall othersimilarly situatedeD students
FAPE by providing Petitionersandthesestudentswvith an educatiorthat has
failed to confer meaningful educationalbenefit as required by IDEA.
Petitionershavenot beenableto makeany meaningfulacademiandin many
casesnon-academigbehavioral)progresdor the pastseveralyearsduethe
denialof FAPE outlinedin Paragraph#1 above.The pervasivereality for ED
studentsacrossIPSSis that eventhoughthey are of averagantelligence,by
the time they reach Junior High or High School age, they are typically
performingyearsbehindtheir chronologicalgradelevel andtheir peers.One
resultis that ED studentsare typically placedin restrictive self-contained
settings(SeeParagraph#4) and this leadsto an almostnon-existentHigh
SchoolDiplomaratefor suchstudentswhich is the ultimateevidenceof lack
of meaningful educationalbenefit. This reality reflects an obvious and
systemicpracticeof providing inappropriatespecialeducationand related
servicesto ED studentsSee Board of Education of Hendrick Central School
Dist. v. Rowley, 458 U.S. 176,200-201(1982); Cypress-Fairbanks ISD v.
Michael F. 118 F.3d 245, 253-254 ["&ir. 1997)

3. JPSShasfurtherdeniedPetitionersGlennD, JamesT. andall othersimilarly
situatedED studentsFAPE by its violations of IDEAOdiscipline provisions
involving studentswith disabilities who have beenremovedfrom their
educationaplacemenfor morethan 10 schooldaysin a schoolyear. These
provisionsrequire JPSSto conduct Manifest DeterminationReviews;to
furnish on-goingeducationakerviceshat enablestudentswith disabilitiesto
appropriatelyprogressn the generalcurriculumand appropriatelyadvance
toward achieving the goals set out in the studentslEPs; to have IEP

' LDEDs IDEA violations as discusseftia involve 42 U.S.C. 81412 (a)(11); 34 C.F.R. = 300.128,
©300.600; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A, = 301,302,340.



committeesconductappropriatefunctional behavioralassessmentsnd to
draft, review, modify asnecessargandimplementbehaviorinterventionplans
thatalsoincludepositivebehavioralnterventionsstrategieandsupportsSee
20 U.S.C.0 1415(k); 34 C.F.R.2 300.121(Q ; 34 C.F.R.©519-526 See also
34 C.F.R.a 300.346(a)(2), (d); Bulletin 1706 SubpartA & 519 At all times
relevant, JPSS has failed to comply with these IDEA requirements.

Moreover,it bearsemphasighat JPSShasconsistentlyhadthe highestLEA
out-of schoolsuspensiomate for studentswith disabilitiesin Louisiana.In
2001-2002,29.30% of studentsreceiving specialeducationserviceswere
subjectto at leastone out-of school suspensionversusa statewideLEA
averagdor specialeducationstudentf 16.29%.JPPSatewas 180%of the
stateaverageand was also 2.96 times greaterthan the suspensiomate for
studentswvithout disabilitiesin the district. During the 2002-2003schoolyear
JPSSout-of schoolsuspensiorrate was 31.04%versusa stateaverageof
16.44%.JPPSrate was 188% of the stateaverageandwas also 3.04 times
greaterthanthe suspensiomatefor studentsvithout disabilitiesin the district.
During 2003-2004 JPSSout of schoolsuspensiomatewas 29.26%versusa
stateaverageof 16.92%.JPSSrate was 173% of the stateaverageandwas
2.76timesgreaterthanthe ratefor studentsvithout disabilitiesin the district.
JPPSremarkably high and significantly disproportionateout-of school
suspensiomatesthe pastseveralyearsreflect pervasivenoncompliancevith
IDEAOsdisciplinary provisions and also raise the specterof pervasive
discriminatorypracticestowardsstudentswith disabilities versusstudents
without disabilities.

4. JPSShas also violated IDEA by consistentlyfailing to provide special
educationandrelatedservicesto Petitionersand all othersimilarly situated
ED studentsn the LeastRestrictiveEnvironment.PetitionersGlennD.and
KeneishaS. (andnumeroustherED studentshavespentseveralyearsin the
mostrestrictiveplacemenpossible JohnMartyn self-containectlassest ----.
In theseJohnMartyn classesPetitionershavebeendeprivedof any contact
with their non-disablegeers All of their coursesarein theseisolated highly
restrictiveplacementsandthey are alsorequiredto takelunch andrecessn
the sameself-containedsetting. The multi-step or tri-level behavior
managemenprogramimplementedin JPSSQohnMartyn classesviolates
IDEAO<undamentatequiremenbf individualizededucationaprogramming
for studentswith disabilitiesandfurtherrequiresstudentgo Oearithe rightOto

2 Despite JPSSO stunning out-of school suspension rates for students with disabilities, LDE has neither
monitored JPSS on this systemic issue nor has it compelled JPPS to revise its policies and procedures
relating to the development and implementation of IEPs , the use of behavioral interventions and
procedural safeguards to ensure the district complies with IDEA and the Children with Exceptionalities
Act. LDEOs violations as discussefilz involve 42 U.S.C. a 1412(a)(11), & 1412 (a)(22) ; 34 C.F.R. &
300.146 (a), (b), @ 300.600; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A 2301, 302, 340, 375.

% The John Martyn class at ----- is in a portable trailer that is separated from and sits behind the
interconnected high school buildings. This class houses only ED students. The John Martyn class at ------
is a segregated locked classroom.



bein lessrestrictivesettings.t goeswithout sayingthat studentsareentitled
to placementin the least restrictive environmentregardlessof their
performancan suchmulti\tri-level programs Petitionersplacemenin these
highly restrictive John Martyn settings (known as the Most Restrictive
Environmenf{MRE classrooms])s a directresultof JPSSsystemicfailure to
provide them and all other similarly situatedED studentswith FAPE as
outlined in Paragraphs#1-3 aboveand itOsfailure to comply with IDEA
requirements governing placement in the LRE.

Petitioner JamesT. has spentseveralyearsin JPSSin self-contained
classroomsettings. PetitionersT.Osepeatedlacemenin highly restrictive
self-containedsettingsis a directresultof JPSSOilure to provide him and
othersimilarly situatedeD studentswith FAPE asoutlinedin Paragraphg1-3
above and its failure to comply with IDEAOsrequirementsgoverning
placemenin theleastrestrictiveenvironmentSee 42 U.S.C.a1414a)(5); 34
C.F.R.a 300.550-556; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A 0446,448.

JPSSplacedPetitionerKS in a morerestrictivesettingduring the 2003-2004
school-yearwithout first conductinga re-evaluation,or holding an IEP

meetingwith the requiredparticipants. Recentlyafter returningfrom one
semestein the St TammanySchoolDistrict, JPPSalso unilaterally placed
PetitionerThomasin a morerestrictivesettingwithout first conductinga re-

evaluationmuchlessnotifying PetitionerO§Osnotherand conductinga new

IEP meeting.Petitionersasserthat JPP Ssystemicallyviolatestheright of ED

studentdy movingthemto morerestrictiveenvironmentsvithout conducting
re-evaluations or holding appropriately constituted IEP meetings.

See 42 U.S.C.a 1414(f),a1415(b),(c);34 C.F.R.=300.503; Bulletin 1706,

Subpart A ©417A, o 431B3, a 504.

The above circumstances clearly reflect the following:

(a) Thereis little evidencemuch less any meaningfuldocumentatiorthat
appropriatesupplementahids and servicesor accommodationgre being
furnishedto ED studentsncluding Petitionergo enablethemto participatein
general education.

(b) Regular\GeneraEducationin JPSSsimply doesnot welcomemuchless
include ED studentsgenerallyand there hasbeeninadequatestaff training

regardingthe typesof supplementahids,servicesaccommodationsupports,
modificationsand other teachingpracticesthat would provide ED students
with opportunitiego participateandprogressn the generalcurriculum.There

* LDEOs IDEA violations as discussed infra involve 42 U.S.C. = 1412 (a) (5), ® 1412 (a) (11); 34 C.F.R. =
300.555, = 300.556, @ 300.600; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A, o 301, ©302E.

® Petitioners assert on information and belief that JPPS routinely moves students returning form the
Department of Corrections juvenile justice training institutes to more restrictive settings without conducting
re-evaluations or holding properly constituted IEP Team meetings.



hasalso beena woefully inadequateprovision and use of Paraprofessional
Aides, much less SpecialEducationteacherswith ED studentsin general
educationsettings.Team or Co-teachingarrangements&nd coordination
amongstGeneralEducationand Special Educationteachersis essentially
nonexistentin JPPSand this reality effectively denies studentswith
disabilitiesandin particular,ED studentsyith opportunitiedo participateand
progresdan the generalcurriculum.GeneralEducationis not a placeSpecial
Education teachers work.

(c) Studentswith disabilities including ED studentsare moved to more
restrictive environmentsin violation of the IDEAOsrequirementsthat
supplementalaids, services,accommodationsand modifications are
consideredprior to any removal;that re-evaluationsare conductedand IEP
meetings are held prior to any removal.

(d) Petitionersand othersimilarly situatedED studentsoften do not address
generalcurriculumrequirementsn JPSS@®elf-contained:lassroomsettings
andthustheyareprovidedwith no meaningfulopportunityto returnto general
educationin the future. Consequentlytheir opportunityfor obtaininga high
school diploma has also been obviated.

(e) SpecialEducationis still seenasa placeratherthanan array of services
and supportsfor studentswith disabilities. This district philosophy has
produceda self-containedclass\settingplacementrate for studentswith
disabilitiesthat currentlyis the highestin the statefor any LEA. The self-
containedratein JeffersonParishhasbeenmorethantwice the stateaverage
for severalyearsandis currently at 43% versusa stateaverageof 22.3%.
JPPScontinuego placenearlyoneout of everytwo studentswith disabilities
in self-containedsettingsand this numberis much higherfor ED students.
This reality existsfor studentswith disabilitiesin JPPSdespitethe fact that
thereareover 30 LEAs in Louisianathat haveself-containedlassplacement
ratesof 15% or lessand24 of thesedistrictshaveratesof 10%or less.This is
not a questionof coincidenceor wherewithal, but rather JPSS@ystemic,
longstanding,and illegal segregationispracticesinvolving studentswith
disabilities.JPSSgeneraleducationadministrationjncluding principalswith
site basedadministrativeauthority,doesnot believestudentswith disabilities
belongin generaleducatiorandthis is provenby the districtOsself-contained
placementatesandits systemicfailure to provide appropriatesupplemental
aidsandservicesaccommodationssupportsand modificationsnecessaryo
enablestudentswith \disabilities including ED studentsto participatein
generaleducatiorf. See 42 U.S.C.n 1412 (a)(5); 34 C.F.R.2300.550-556;
Bulletin 1706, Subpart A & 446,448.

® LDE has long known of the JPSSO pervasive LRE violations and indeed has repeatedly cited the district in
its compliance monitoring reports for systemic LRE violations. In fact LDE has itself identified all of the
above factors as undermining students with disabilities fundamental rights to the provision of FAPE in the
Least Restrictive Environment. Four years after LDEOs last compliance monitoring of JPPS and well over a



5. JPSShasfurther deniedPetitionersand othersimilarly situatedED students
14 yearsof ageandolderin JuniorHigh SchoolandHigh SchoolFAPE by
failing to provide necessaryand appropriatetransition servicesthat will
preparethemfor employmentandindependentiving asrequiredby IDEA.
Petitioners@nd other similarly situatedED students@EP objectivesare not
derivedfrom, directly relatedto, nor indicative of the outcome\actiorsteps
listed on the TransitionServicesForm of the IEP. Indeed,little or no nexus
existsbetweenstudents@ansitionplan and their IEP goalsand objectives.
Moreover,thereis anutterabsencef coordinationbetweerspecialeducation
teachersschooladministratorsand personnelat JPSS®ocationaltraining
schools(eg. Cuiller VocationalSchool).Often the vocationalschoolsdo not
have copiesof studentsIEPs nor do they considerthemselvesbound to
provide IEP serviceswithin the vocational programsoffered. See 34
C.F.R.§300.29 ; 34 C.F.R. § 300.340-348 ; 34 C.F.R. § 300.347(b), Bulletin
1706, Subpart A § 444(m).”

6. JPSShasdeniedPetitionersandothersimilarly situatedeD students~APE
by systemicallyfailing to comply with the proceduraland substantive
requirementsgoverning the developmentand implementationof IEPs,
specifically 34 CFR = 300.343, 344, 345 and 347 (a) (1), (2), (3), (7) (f (ii).

7.

Louisiana Department of Education’s General Supervisory Responsibilities Under IDEA

LDE is jointly responsiblgor JPSSsystemicviolations of IDEA listed above.
LDE bearsultimateresponsibilityfor ensuringJPSSfully complieswith IDEA, andin
doing so, providesFAPE to all studentswith disabilities. LDEQsresponsibilitiesare
clearly definedin IDEASs statutoryandregulatoryprovisionsaswell asunderLouisiana
state law. These provisions are detailed below.

Congressenactedthe IDEA to assurethat all children with disabilities have
availableto thema Free AppropriatePublic Education(FAPE). See 20 U.S.C.01412.
Congresslsoplacedthe ultimateresponsibilityfor compliancewith IDEA on the State
EducationalAgency( SEA), in this casethe LouisianaDepartmenbf Education(LDE)
declaringthat for a stateto receivefederalIDEA funding,the SEA shallbe responsible
for ensuring(a) the requirement®f the Act aremet(b)thatall educationaprogramsfor

decade since first identifying systemic LRE violations in JPPS, the systemic LRE violations outlined in
Section #4 above have avoided correction and still persist. This reality reflects that LDE is in violation of
42 U.S.C. 11412 (a)(5), @ 1412 (a)(11); 34 C.F.R.a 300.555-556, ©300.600; Bulletin 1706, Subpart A, &
301, 302E. See alsGprey H. v. lllinois Board of Education, 995 F.Supp. 900, 904 (D.lIl. 1998).

" LDEOs IDEA violations as discussed infra involve 42 U.S.C.21412(A)(11); 34 C.F.R.2300.128, ©300.600;
Bulletin 1706, Subpart A @301, a302.

8 LDEOs IDEA violations as discussed infra involve 42 U.S.C. 81412 (a)(11); 34 C.F.R. = 300.128,
©300.600; Bulletin 1706 Subpart A = 301,302.



studentswith disabilitiesareunderthegenerakupervisiorof individualsin the statewho
areresponsibleor the educationabrogramsfor childrenwith disabilities(c)thatthese
programsmeet LDEOseducationalstandards20 U.S.C. 01412 (a)(11 34 C.F.R. §
300.600. See also, Corey H. Illinois State Board of Education, 995F. Supp.900,904(N.
D. 11.1998)° As the SEA in Louisiana,LDE is the Ocentrapoint of accountability(or
ensuringcompliancewith IDEA by local educationabgencie{LEAS). Kruelle v. New
Castle School District, 642 F.2d687696,697 (3. Cir. 1981 citing S. Rep.No. 168,94"
cong., ' Sess.24zeprinted in 1975 U.S.Code Cong. & Admin.News 1425,1448.

LDE is requiredto implementpolicies and procedureso ensurethat FAPE is
availableto studentswith disabilitiesbetweerthe agesof threeandtwenty-onejncluding
studentsvho havebeensuspendedr expelledform school.20 U.S.C.21412(a)(1)(A).
FAPE is defined as special education and related services that;

- are provided at public expense, under public supervision, and without charge
- meet the standards of the SEA

- include an appropriate preschool, elementary or secondary school education
- are provided in conformity with the Individualized Education Program (IEP)

20 U. S.C. @ 1401(8)

The IEP is a written documentthat is developedto meetthe unique needof
studentswith disabilities. The IEP is the primary meansby which FAPE is providedto
studentswith disabilities.20 U.S.C.a 1401(8)(D),20 U.S.C.= 1412 (a)(4). Dueto the
critical importanceof the delivery of FAPE to studentswith disabilities,LDE is required
to createstandardsand policiesthat regulatethe developmentimplementationyeview
andrevisionof IEPs.LDE is alsorequiredto establishandnotify theU. S. Departmenbf
Educationof its proceduredor monitoring and evaluatingthe IEPs of studentswith
disabilities.34 C. F.R. ©300.128 (b).

LDE mustalso ensurethat Otothe maximumextentappropriate children with
disabilities E.are educatedwith children who are not disabled,and specialclasses,
separateschooling, or other removal of children from the regular educational
environmenbccursonly whenthe natureandseverityof the childOslisability is suchthat
educationin regularclasseswvith the useof supplementaryaids and servicescannotbe
achievedsatisfactorily. 20 U.S.C.a 1412(a)(5)(A). This IDEA mandatés knownasthe
LeastRestrictiveEnvironment(LRE). In orderto ensurethat studentswith disabilities
receivespecialeducationand relatedservicesin the LeastRestrictive Environment,
regulationgpromulgategursuanto IDEA specificallyrequireLDE to carryoutactivities
including monitoring activities that ensurethe LRE mandateis implementedby all
LEAs.34C.F.R.2300.556.LDE is alsoresponsibldor carryingout additionalactivities
to ensurethat teachersand administratoran all LEAs are fully informed abouttheir
responsibilitiesfor implementingthe LRE mandateand are provided with technical

°In Cordero v. Pennsylvania Department of Education, 795 F.Supp.1352,1359-1360 ( M.D.Penn. 1992),

the Court held Othe IDEA imposes an overarching responsibility to ensure the rights created by statute are
protected, regardless of the actions of local school districtsEEa state must moreover ensure through
oversight that state and local agencies, including school districts fulfill the dictates of the Act.O



assistancandtraining necessaryo assistthemin this effort. See 34 C.F.R.a 300.555.
In the eventthat LEAs violate the LRE mandateandrights of studentswith disabilities,
LDE must assistthemin planningand implementingnecessarycorrectiveaction.34
C.F.R. @ 300.556 (b).

Pursuanto LDEOsgyeneralsupervisoryresponsibilitieoutlinedabove LDE must
implementan effective monitoring and enforcementsystemto ensurethat all of the
requirement®f IDEA areimplementedoy LEAs across.ouisiana.34 C.F.R.2300.600.
As statedby Office of SpecialEducationProgramgOSEP)in the U.S. Departmenif
Educationwhen releasingthe IDEA regulationsin 1999, Oa strong SEA monitoring
procesdo ensureeffectiveimplementatiorof the Act is crucialto improving educational
resultsfor childrenwith disabilities.A basiccomponenbf [stateOsdligibility haslong
beenthat the SEA exercisesgeneralsupervisoryresponsibilityover all educational
programsfor childrenwith disabilitiesin the State.This responsibilityincludesnot just
monitoring and enforcementwhen noncompliancas not corrected,but also effective
technicalassistanceEWeknow from long experienceEthat if SEA monitoringis lax,
noncompliantpracticesemergeat the local level and indicatorsof performancefor
children with disabilities decline.O Federal Register, Vol. 64, March 12, 1999.

IDEA alsorequiresLDE to examinedatato determindf significantdiscrepancies
are occurringin the rate of long term suspensionsnd expulsionsof children with
disabilities(1) amongLEAs in the State;or (2) comparedo the ratesfor non-disabled
children within the LEAs. If discrepanciesre occurring, LDE must review and if
appropriaterevise(or requirethe affectedLEA to revise)its policies, proceduresand
practicesrelatingto the developmentandimplementatiorof IEPs,the useof behavioral
interventions,and proceduralsafeguardsto ensurethat thesepolicies, proceduresand
practices comply with the Act. 20 U.S.C. & 1412 (a)(22) ; 34 C.F.R. @ 300.146.

LDEOsGeneralSupervisoryresponsibilitiesdetailed above are also imposed
under state law. See Regulationsfor Implementation of the Children with
Exceptionalities Act, R.S. 17:1941, Bulletin 1706 Subpart A, 301,302, 375.

Systemic Remedies Necessary to Settle This Class Due Process Complaint

LDE will needto takethe following actionto addresghe systemiclDEA violations
delineated in Section:

(1) Compel JPPSto significantly increasethe frequencyand duration of social
work\counseling\psychologicalservicesprovided to ED studentsand ensure
decisionsinvolving suchrelatedservicesare basedupon individual needand not
staff availability;

(2) CompelJPSSto developa systemictraining protocolthatincludesthe provisionof
training by a nationalrecognizedexpertin developmenbf FunctionalBehavioral
Assessment§FBAS), BehaviorInterventionPlans(BIPs) emphasizinghe use of



Positive Behavioral Interventionsand Supports(PBIS) and positive behavioral
supportsfor all pupil appraisalstaff in the school systemand «l/ teachers,
paraprofessionalslisciplinariansandadministratorsvorking at schoolswhich have
ED studentsThetraining protocolshallalsoincludethe activeuseof pupil appraisal
staff for ongoing follow-up with staff in the designated schools above;

(3) CompelJPSSo developspecificschoolsystempoliciesthataredisseminatedby the
Superintendento all school building administratorsincluding principals\vice-
principals\disciplinarian®utlining and mandatingstrict compliancewith IDEAOs
disciplinerequirementsncluding ManifestationDeterminationReviews;providing
IEP servicesupon reachingthe 11" cumulativeday of out-of schoolsuspensions;
developmentof appropriateFBAs; developmentof BIPS involving positive
behavioralinterventionsand supportsyreview and modificationof BIPS afterevery
10 days of suspensions;

(4) CompelJPSSto developwith LDE, SPLCand SDLC, aswell asthe nationally
recognizedexpertspecifiedin paragraph#2 abovespecific annualstrategiesand
objectives for significantly reducing the number of suspensions of ED students;

(5) Compel JIPSSto developwith LDE, SPLC and SDLC as well as a nationally
recognizedexpertin LRE and specifically,inclusive educationakettingsfor SED
studentsspecific annual strategiesand objectivesfor significantly reducingthe
numberof ED studentsin self-containedclassroomsettingsand concomitantly
significantly increasing ED students accessto the general education
curriculum\classroom®ver the next threeto four years.This must necessarily
involve the closing of all John Martyn MRE classrooms across the district;

(6) Compel JIPSSto developwith LDE, SPLC and SDLC specific strategiesand
objectives for implementing intensive reading remediation programs at all
elementaryschoolsservingED studentdo ensurethatthey arereadingat or within
one year of chronological grade level by the time they move onto junior high school;

(7) Compel JPSSto developwith LDE, SPLC and SDLC specific strategiesand
objectivesfor significantly increasingthe graduatiorrate of ED studentsaswell as
ED students@articipationin and successfukcompletionof Vocational Training
coursesover the next 3-5 years. Additionally, compel JPSSto develop and
implementspecific policies mandatingthe districtO%/ ocational Training Schoolsto
fully implementlEP servicesof enrolledstudentswith disabilities.Finally, compel
JPSSto train all junior high and high school counselors,special education
coordinatorsanda Olead@pecialeducatiorandregulareducatiorteacherat eachof
theseschoolre the vocationalcourses\programavailableat the districtOsocational

10



training schools,the admissioncriteria for theseprogramsand their availability to
students with disabilities.

(8) Payment of attorneysO fees and costs.

Sincerely,

James Comstock-Galagan, Esq.
Southern Disability Law Center
976 Beach Blvd.

Bay St. Louis, MS 39520

(Ph.) 228-467-0092

(Fax) 228-467-0856

Courtney A. Bowie, Esqg.
Southern Poverty Law Center
400 Washington Ave.
Montgomery, AL 36104

(Ph.) 334-956-8200

(Fax) 334-956-8481

Hector Linares, Esq.
Juvenile Justice Project of Louisiana
1600 Oretha Castle Haley Blvd.
New Orleans, LA 70113
(Ph.) 504-522-5437

(Fax) 504-522-5430
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